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2300 -2000 years ago (323- 1 BCE)

After the arrival of Alexander the Great in Egypt
and the establishment of the Ptolemaic
dynasty as the ruling house of Egypt in
Alexandria, there were great changes at Sais. It
is possible that some of the stone sculptures
and blocks from the Sais temples were taken to
the new capital of Alexandria. Finds from the
submerged ‘Palace of Cleopatra’ in Alexandria
and the cities of Canopus and Thonis suggest
that sculpture from major religious centres
such as Sais adorned the royal quarters and
provided a link with the past kings of Egypt for
the new rulers.

Sais was not completely neglected, however,
and Professor Labib Habachi believed that the
‘Rosetta Stone’ was originally set up in Sais. In
196 BCE the stone recorded a royal decree
listing the festivals and offerings that were to
be made in the Egyptian temples after a
meeting of all the priests of Egypt. There may
also have been a temple dedicated to
Cleopatra VIl at Sais and the Sheikh Shaheen
farmhouse was built upon a mound of Late
Ptolemaic and Roman pottery.

2000- 1500 years ago (AD 1-500)

Sais was an important Roman town, although
it did not lie upon any of the main Roman
highways through Egypt. The settlement was
concentrated in the area of the modern village,
with some outlying farmhouses to the north
and east. In the centre of town there was a
bath-house where important town officials
could meet to socialise and discuss business.
Egyptian gods were worshipped in the form of
Amun and Aphrodite-Isis. There may have
been a special sanctuary for the goddess here
as indicated by the bronze statues of the
goddess found in a hoard at Sa el-Hagar in
1980. They can all be seen in Tanta Museum.

CHRISTIAN, MEDIEVAL AND MODERN SAIS
(AD 325 to today)

In the Christian era there were several churches
at Sais, one of which was located to the east of
the ‘Great Pit’ It may have been a centre for the
manufacture of faience and pottery. In 975 Ibn
Haugal write that there was one mosque in
Sais (perhaps the oldest mosque still in the
centre of town), but there were many churches
and ‘The Fountains of Moses’ could also be
found there. There was a Christian bishop at

Sais from Bishop Nemesios in 325 to Bishop
Anba Magarah in 1086.

The geographer Al Magrizi, ca. 1440, tells of a
traveller who found a mud brick in the ruins of
Sais. When he broke it open he found that it
contained an ear of corn in perfect condition,
as if it had just been harvested.
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